London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Cabinet
Agenda
MONDAY
2 MARCH 2020
7.00 pm
MAIN HALL
FIRST FLOOR
3 SHORTLANDS
LONDON W6 8DA

Date Issued
21 February 2020

Membership
Councillor Stephen Cowan, Leader of the Council
Councillor Sue Fennimore, Deputy Leader
Councillor Larry Culhane, Cabinet Member for Children and Education
Councillor Andrew Jones, Cabinet Member for the Economy
Councillor Wesley Harcourt, Cabinet Member for the Environment
Councillor Max Schmid, Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial
Services
Councillor Ben Coleman, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social
Care
Councillor Lisa Homan, Cabinet Member for Housing
Councillor Adam Connell, Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform
Councillor Sue Macmillan, Cabinet Member for Strategy
If you require further information relating to this agenda please contact:
Katia Neale, Committee Coordinator, tel: 07776 672 956 or email:
katia.neale@lbhf.gov.uk
Reports on the open Cabinet agenda are available on the Council’s
website: www.lbhf.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy

Members of the Public are welcome to attend.
A loop system for hearing impairment is provided, together with disabled
access to the building

DEPUTATIONS
Members of the public may submit a request for a deputation to the Cabinet on items
number 4 to 6 on this agenda using the Council’s Deputation Request Form. The completed
Form, to be sent to Kayode Adewumi at the above address, must be signed by at least ten
registered electors of the Borough and will be subject to the Council’s procedures on the
receipt of deputations. Deadline for receipt of deputation requests: Wednesday 26
February 2020.
COUNCILLORS’ CALL-IN TO SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
A decision list regarding items on this agenda will be published by Tuesday 3 March 2020.
Items on the agenda may be called in to the relevant Accountability Committee.
The deadline for receipt of call-in requests is: Friday 6 March 2020 at 3.00pm. Decisions
not called in by this date will then be deemed approved and may be implemented.
A confirmed decision list will be published after 3:00pm on Friday 6 March 2020.

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Cabinet
Agenda
2 March 2020
Item

Pages

1.

MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 3 FEBRUARY 2020

2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

4 - 14

If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item,
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or
as soon as it becomes apparent.
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, give
evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor must
then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is
discussed and any vote taken.
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration.
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest.
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards
Committee.
4.

PETITIONS : PETITION TO RE-OPEN HARWOOD TERRACE

15 - 20

5.

MHCLG ROUGH SLEEPING AND DOMESTIC ABUSE GRANTS

21 - 25

6.

CIVIC CAMPUS PROGRAMME - LAND APPROPRIATION

26 - 40

7.

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

41 - 58

8.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Agenda Item 1
.

London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham

Cabinet
Minutes
Monday 3 February 2020

PRESENT
Councillor Stephen Cowan, Leader of the Council
Councillor Sue Fennimore, Deputy Leader
Councillor Ben Coleman, Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care
Councillor Adam Connell, Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform
Councillor Larry Culhane, Cabinet Member for Children and Education
Councillor Wesley Harcourt, Cabinet Member for the Environment
Councillor Andrew Jones, Cabinet Member for the Economy
Councillor Lisa Homan, Cabinet Member for Housing
Councillor Max Schmid, Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial Services

95.

MINUTES OF THE CABINET MEETING HELD ON 6 JANUARY 2020
RESOLVED:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 6 January 2020 be
confirmed and signed as an accurate record of the proceedings, and that the
outstanding actions be noted.

96.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Sue Macmillan.

97.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Councillor Schmid declared a significant interest on Item 11 - School Budget
Shares (Dedicated Schools Grant) 2020, as his sister is a head teacher at a
school in the borough. He left the room during the consideration of the item and
did not vote.

______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 4

98.

CORPORATE REVENUE MONITOR 2019/20 MONTH 7 - 31 OCTOBER 2019
RESOLVED:
1

To delegate authority to the Strategic Director Finance and Governance,
in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial
Services, all decisions necessary to produce the final accounts.

2

That Directors and Cabinet members urgently identify and deliver actions
that offset the forecast General Fund overspend of £8.9m in accordance
with the Council’s RFE Priority.

3

To approve the budget virement in appendix 9 and enter into an
agreement with the GLA to receive £150,000 of funding from the Mayor’s
Young Londoners Fund over three years to deliver the Motor Vehicle
Project for Young People at risk of offending or re-offending.

4

To note the HRA forecast overspend.

Reason for decision:
As set out in the report.
Alternative options considered and rejected:
As outlined in the report.
Record of any conflict of interest:
None.
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest:
None.
99.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITOR & BUDGET VARIATIONS, 2019/20
(THIRD QUARTER)
RESOLVED:
1. To approve the proposed budget variations to the capital programme
totalling £15.5m (summarised in Table 1 and detailed in Appendix 2).
2. To note the potential risks regarding the Housing Capital Programme, as
summarised in section 5.
Reason for decision:
As set out in the report.
Alternative options considered and rejected:
As outlined in the report.
Record of any conflict of interest:
None.

______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 5

Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest:
None.
100.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY MID-YEAR REVIEW REPORT
2019/20
RESOLVED:
The Committee is asked to note the Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20
mid-year review.
Reason for decision:
As set out in the report.
Alternative options considered and rejected:
As outlined in the report.
Record of any conflict of interest:
None.
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest:
None.

101.

REVENUE BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX LEVELS 2020/21
RESOLVED:
The Leader stated that after 10 years of austerity, significant cuts and loss of
revenue, the Council not only had managed to keep the service flowing but also
had improved it. He thanked all officers, specially Hitesh Jolapara, in this great
achievement.
RESOLVED:
That Council, for the reasons set out in this report and appendices, agree:
1.
2.
3.

To increase the Hammersmith & Fulham element of council tax by
1.99% for 2020/21.
To apply central government’s modelled “adult social care precept” levy
of 2% for 2020/21.
To set council tax for 2020/21 for each category of dwelling, as
calculated in accordance with Sections 31A to 49B of the Localism Act
2011, as outlined in the table below and in full in Appendix A:
(a)

The element of council tax charged for Hammersmith & Fulham
Council will be £792.42 per Band D property in 2020/21.

______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 6

(b)

Category of A
Dwelling
Ratio
6/9
£

The overall Council Tax to be set at £1,119.34 per Band D property
in 2020/21 as follows.

B

C

D

E

F

7/9
£

8/9
£

1
£

11/9
£

a) H&F

528.28

616.33

704.37

792.42

968.51

b) GLA

217.95

254.27

290.60

326.92

399.57

c) Total

746.23

870.60

994.97

4.

5.
6.
7.
8.

9.

10.
11.

12.

13.

G
13/9
£

H
15/9
£

18/9
£

1,144.61 1,320.70 1,584.84
472.22

544.87

653.84

1,119.34 1,368.08 1,616.83 1,865.57 2,238.68

To note the element of council tax charged by the Greater London
Authority in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government
Finance Act 1992 will be £326.92 per Band D property in 2020/21.
To set the Council’s own total net expenditure budget for 2020/21 at
£121.003m.
To approve £8.3m of new investment on key services for residents.
To approve fees and charges as set out in paragraph 3.1 below including
freezing charges in adult social care, children’s services and housing.
To note the budget projections to 2023/24 made by the Strategic
Director, Finance and Governance in consultation with the Strategic
Leadership Team.
To note the statement of the Strategic Director, Finance and
Governance, under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003,
regarding the adequacy of reserves and robustness of estimates (section
10).
To approve the reserves strategy and realignment of reserves as set out
in Appendix J and Appendix K.
To authorise the Strategic Director, Finance and Governance to collect
and recover National Non-Domestic Rate and Council Tax in accordance
with the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended), the Local
Government Finance Act 1992 and the Council’s Scheme of Delegation.
To require all Directors to report on their projected financial position
compared to their revenue estimates in accordance with the Corporate
Revenue Monitoring Report timetable.
To authorise Directors to implement their service spending plans for
2020/21 in accordance with the recommendations within this report and
the Council's Standing Orders, Financial Regulations, relevant Schemes
of Delegation and undertake any further consultation required regarding
the Equalities Impact Assessment.

Reason for decision:
As set out in the report.
______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 7

Alternative options considered and rejected:
As outlined in the report.
Record of any conflict of interest:
None.
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest:
None.
102.

FINANCIAL PLAN FOR COUNCIL HOMES: THE HOUSING REVENUE
ACCOUNT (HRA) FINANCIAL STRATEGY, 2020/21 HRA BUDGET, 2020/21
RENT INCREASE AND HRA 40 YEAR FINANCIAL BUSINESS PLAN
RESOLVED:
That Cabinet agrees:
1. To approve the Housing Revenue Account 2020/21 budget for Council
homes as set out in Table 1.
2. To approve the 40-year Financial Plan for Council Homes for 2020/21 to
2058/59 as set out in section 5 of this report.
3. To approve a transfer of £17.2m from Housing Revenue Account
earmarked reserves to general reserves as part of a reallocation of HRA
resources following an assessment of the balance of earmarked
reserves required and the financial pressures facing the HRA.
4. To approve the long-term HRA Financial Plan which includes plans to
deliver on-going annual revenue savings of £0.5million per annum from
2020/21 rising to £4.0million per annum from 2023/24 (see Appendix 1).
5. To help fund the 40-year Financial Plan, including investment in better
repairs and new homes, approve a rent increase of 2.7% (based on the
Consumer Prices Index at September 2019 plus 1% in line with
government policy) from April 6th, 2020 which equates to an average
weekly increase of £2.90 in 2020/21.
6. To approve an increase to shared ownership rents of 2.7% (based on
the Consumer Prices Index at September 2019 plus 1% in line with
government policy) from April 6th, 2020.
7. To approve an increase in tenant service charges1 of CPI (1.7% as at
September 2019) from April 6th, 2020.
8. To approve an increase to the management fee for temporary on licence
properties of CPI (1.7% as at September 2019) from April 6th, 2020.

1

This includes general needs, sheltered and hostels properties.

______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 8

9. To delegate authority to the Strategic Director for The Economy in
conjunction with the Cabinet Member for Housing to agree the average
increase in water charges.
10. To approve a freeze in the communal heating charges.
11. To increase garage charges by CPI (1.7% as at August 2019).
12. To note that any change to parking charges on housing estates will be
considered in a separate report on the Council’s parking plans.
13. To approve an increase in the Leasehold After Sale – Home Buy Fees
from £155 to £160.
Reason for decision:
As set out in the report.
Alternative options considered and rejected:
As outlined in the report.
Record of any conflict of interest:
None.
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest:
None.
103.

FOUR YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2020/21 AND CAPITAL STRATEGY
2020/21
RESOLVED:
1. To approve the four-year General Fund Capital Programme budget at
£492.2m for the period 2020/21-2023/24 (paragraph 2.1, Table 2 and
Appendix 1).
2. To approve the four-year rolling programmes, set out in Table 3 (paragraph
2.2), funded from the Council’s mainstream resources:


Capital receipts and borrowing:
Planned Maintenance/DDA Programme [F&G]
Column Replacement [ENV]
Footways and Carriageways [ENV]
Total



£m
2.40
0.10
2.03
4.53

Contributions from revenue (Parking):
Controlled Parking Zones [ENV]
Column Replacement [ENV]
Total

£m
0.275
0.246
0.521

______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 9

3. To note the existing mainstream funded schemes previously approved, but
now reprofiled to 2020/21 and future years as detailed in Table 3 (paragraph
2.2).
4. To approve the four-year Housing Capital Programme at £199.97m for the
period 2020/21-2023/24 as set out in Table 5 (paragraph 3.2) and Appendix
1.
5. To delegate the potential application of capital receipts brought forward (up
to £3.5m) under the Government’s Flexible Use of Capital Receipts
provisions to fund Invest to Save schemes in 2019/20 and 2020/21 (as
identified in Appendix 5) to the Strategic Director, Finance and Governance,
in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial
Services, as part of the closure of the 2019/20 and 2020/21 accounts.
6. To approve an additional budget envelope of £50m, from 2020/21 onwards,
to provide operational flexibility, for taking forward the major projects set out
in Capital Strategy Report. Use of this budget will be subject to Cabinet
approval, agreement of funding sources and sign-off of an appropriate
business case.
7. To approve Capital Strategy 2020/21, as set out in Appendix 4.
8. To approve annual Minimum Revenue Provision policy statement for
2020/21, as set out in Appendix 6.
Reason for decision:
As set out in the report.
Alternative options considered and rejected:
As outlined in the report.
Record of any conflict of interest:
None.
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest:
None.
104.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 2020/21
RESOLVED:
1. That approval is given to the future borrowing and investment strategies
as outlined in this report.
2. That the Strategic Director of Finance and Governance, in consultation
with the Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial Services, be
delegated authority to manage the Council’s cash flow, borrowing and
investments in 2020/21 in line with this report.

______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 10

3. In relation to the Council’s overall borrowing for the financial year, to
approve the Prudential Indicators as set out in this report and the revised
Annual Investment Strategy set out in Appendix E.
Reason for decision:
As set out in the report.
Alternative options considered and rejected:
As outlined in the report.
Record of any conflict of interest:
None.
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest:
None.
105.

SCHOOL BUDGET SHARES (DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT) 2020
Councillor Schmid declared a significant interest on this item, as his sister is a
head teacher at a school in the borough. He left the room during the
consideration of the item and did not vote.

RESOLVED:
1.

To approve the Local Authority formula for allocating resources to
Hammersmith & Fulham schools for 2020/21 as set out in Appendix 1, the
Authority Proforma Tool (APT) for setting school budgets.

2.

To approve the National Funding Formula (NFF) transitional factors (as
set out in Appendix 1) as the basis for calculating the 2020/21 schools
funding formula, together with a 0.5% per pupil Minimum Funding
Guarantee (MFG) protection for individual schools versus 2019/20 pupil
led funding levels.

3.

To approve the disapplication request to transfer £1.051m (1.0% of the
total schools block allocation) from the schools block to the high needs
block in the 2020/21 financial year as agreed by Schools Forum on 14
January 2020.

4.

To approve the proposal to top-slice the 2020/21 Schools Block to the
value of £0.1m or 0.01% of the total for the Falling Rolls protection fund in
2020/21 as agreed by Schools Forum on 14 January 2020.

5.

To approve de-delegation budgets of £709,027 for maintained mainstream
schools only and as approved by Schools Forum on 14 January 2020.

______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 11

Area of expenditure
Maintained Schools in Financial Difficulty/Contingency
Maintained Schools Trade Union Facilities Cover
Maintained Schools Maternity Cover
Maintained Schools Licence Fees
Behavioural Support (SEND)
Free School Meals Eligibility
Underperforming Ethnic Groups
Additional School Improvement
Total
6.

2020/21
(£)
200,000
30,000
140,000
40,000
32,027
32,000
125,000
110,000
709,027

To approve the education functions budgets of £323,024 for maintained
mainstream schools only and as approved by Schools Forum on 14
January 2020.
Area of expenditure
Finance
Asset management
Asbestos management and risk
SIMS support
Clothing grants
Total

2020/21
(£)
95,000
95,000
50,000
32,100
50,910
323,024

Reason for decision:
As set out in the report.
Alternative options considered and rejected:
As outlined in the report.
Record of any conflict of interest:
None.
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest:
None.
106.

WASTE COLLECTION, RECYCLING AND STREET CLEANSING SERVICES
RESOLVED:
That Cabinet:
1. Approve the extension and variation of the Waste Collection, Recycling and
Street Cleansing Contract to 29 January 2023, noting that annual
contractual inflation is still subject to agreement with the contractor.
2. Approve that Appendix 1 and 2 to the report are exempt from disclosure on
the grounds that they contain information relating to the financial or business
affairs of a particular person (including the authority holding that information)

______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 12

under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as
amended.
3. Delegate authority to the Strategic Director for the Environment, in
consultation with the Borough Solicitor and Cabinet Member for
Environment, to finalise the Heads of Terms and Deed of Variation by 1
April 2020.
4. Approve the proposed capital investment as set out in the exempt appendix
and delegate the final confirmation of funding to the Strategic Director of
Finance, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Finance and
Commercial Services.
Reason for decision:
As set out in the report.
Alternative options considered and rejected:
As outlined in the report.
Record of any conflict of interest:
None.
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest:
None.
107.

ROUGH SLEEPING SERVICES PROCUREMENT STRATEGY
RESOLVED:
Councillor Sue Fennimore commended Mark Meehan, Julia Copeland and
Glendine Shepherd for their extraordinary work. The contracts would be
awarded based on a Price: Quality ratio of 20:80. The rationale for this ratio
was that the quality of the service was critical to delivering the necessary
outcomes and meeting the individual needs of the vulnerable people in the
borough.
The Leader also congratulated officers on their work and the successful
outcome.
RESOLVED:
That the Cabinet approves
1.

In accordance with the Council’s Contracts Standing Order (CSO)
(18.1), the Business Case & Procurement Strategy for the procurement
of three new Rough Sleeping Services contracts as set out in Appendix 1
attached.

Reason for decision:
As set out in the report.
______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 13

Alternative options considered and rejected:
As outlined in the report.
Record of any conflict of interest:
None.
Note of dispensation in respect of any declared conflict of interest:
None.
108.

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS
The Key Decision List was noted.

109.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

None.

Meeting started: 7.00 pm
Meeting ended: 7.07 pm

Chair

______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will
be recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Page 14

Agenda Item 4
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Report to:

Cabinet

Date:

02/03/2020

Subject:

Petition to Re-open Harwood Terrace

Report of:

Cabinet Member for the Environment - Councillor Wesley Harcourt

Responsible Director: Sharon Lea – Strategic Director of Environment

Summary
Following the start of an experimental traffic scheme on the 21 October 2019,
Harwood Terrace, a residential road in the wards of Parsons Green and Walham,
was closed to through traffic. After the closure of Harwood Terrace a petition to
reopen the road was started by a petition organiser. This petition has a total of 438
signatures from residents (307) and businesses (131). A rival petition to make the
closure of Harwood Terrace permanent was subsequently launched, which to date
has 263 signatures and was supplemented by a paper petition with 51 signatures.

Recommendations

1) To note the petitions
2) To receive an update from the SW6 Traffic Working Party and take any
decisions accordingly

Wards Affected: Parsons Green and Walham, Sands End

Financial Impact
This is a temporary scheme, therefore, reversing the scheme early will not incur any
additional costs over and above those already anticipated.
Leaving the scheme in place will not incur any additional costs over and above those
already agreed for installing the scheme.

Page 15

Legal Implications
There are no legal implications arising from this report

Contact Officer(s):
Name: Masum Choudhury
Position: Head of Transport
Telephone: 020 8753 3354
Email: Masum.Choudhury@lbhf.gov.uk
Name: Giles Batchelor
Position: Finance Manager (Public Realm)
Telephone: 020 8753 2407
Email: Giles.Batchelor@lbhf.gov.uk
Verified by Emily Hill, Assistant Director, Finance
Name: Adesuwa Omoregie
Position: Chief Solicitor (Planning and Property)
Telephone:020 8753 2297
Email: Adesuwa.Omoregie@lbhf.gov.uk

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report
None

Background
1.

Following road safety and traffic concerns expressed by residents of Harwood
Terrace, Waterford Road and Edith Row, a decision was taken to start an
experimental closure of Harwood Terrace.

2.

The closure of Harwood Terrace started on 21 October 2019 under an
experimental traffic regulation order under the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984. The experimental traffic order allows the council up to eighteen months
to determine the implications and impacts of an experimental scheme.

3.

During the experiment, there is scope to make changes, explore steps and
decide on whether the scheme, should be varied, abandoned or made
permanent.

4.

During the initial six months of the experiment the council has a statutory
obligation to consider any objections to the scheme. This statutory six-month
period is also initiated if any modifications are made to the traffic regulation
order.

Page 16

5.

Following the closure of Harwood Terrace, a resident and business petition to
‘Reopen Harwood Terrace’ was organised by a lead petitioner. This petition
obtained a total of 438 signatures, consisting of 307 from residents and 131
from businesses respectively. The petitioner also created a web-based platform
from which the Council received over 2,000 emails, although it is difficult to
verify that all responses through this platform are authentic.

6.

The petition to ‘Reopen Harwood Terrace’ was submitted during the statutory
consultation period, and therefore will be considered when deciding on the
future of the scheme as part of the statutory process.

7.

The residents’ petition request is as follows:
“We the undersigned petition the council to bring an immediate end to the
experimental traffic order which has closed a portion of Harwood Terrace
(SW6) to through traffic.
The partial closure of Harwood Terrace (SW6) enacted 21.October 2019 has
caused SIGNIFICANT DAMAGE to local residents & businesses in Fulham:
Increasing time spent in needless traffic on local roads; Increasing the amount
of pollution locally caused by thousands of extra idling car engines each day;
Harm to local businesses for their staff, deliveries & customers; Unsafe road
conditions for all road users due to the actions of frustrated drivers and heavily
congested roads; Reduced local bus service provision, worst affecting the
most disadvantaged people in society; Reduction in the efficacy of vital local
services and emergency services due to congestion on local roads; Financial
impediment to local residents being forced through a poorly designed junction
& yellow box; Incessant beeping of car horns for residents & businesses close
to the top of Bagleys Lane due to driver frustration & fatigue; And much more
besides!
This petition asks that LBHF Cabinet invites us to discuss this matter at its
next meeting of Cabinet and to hold Councillor Harcourt, the Cabinet Member
for the Environment to account for failing to reopen the road despite having
received nearly 2,000 letters of objection already (more than 1,600 from LBHF
addresses) and a petition asking him to do so, signed by nearly all businesses
based along the Imperial Road; the Wandsworth Bridge Road and The New
Kings Road.
We the petitioners recognise that residents of Harwood Terrace have raised
their concern at the volume of traffic utilising the road upon which they reside
and we support that a solution should be sought for their concerns in due
course, if indeed one can be found which doesn't damage the rest of the local
area. The closure which currently exists has however caused considerable
disruption to the local area and these effects are totally non-commensurate
with the problem which it set out to address. Indeed, the problem which
Harwood Terrace residents outlined to the Council has simply been displaced
& worsened for an (at least) equal number of other residents living toward the

Page 17

top of Bagleys Lane and also adds a new problem for thousands more
residents and road users.”

8.

The business petition request is as follows:
“We, the undersigned business leaders of Fulham, demand that Harwood
Terrace reopen to vehicular through-traffic with immediate effect.
Since Harwood Terrace closed on 21 October 2019, our businesses have
suffered devastating effects thanks to the vastly increased time that our staff,
customers and business partners now spend in slow moving traffic on the
badly impacted surrounding roads on a daily basis.
If the road were not to reopen immediately, it is in our view that, local
businesses will suffer a poor Christmas trading period and that this could do
permanent damage to Fulham’s business community and to the future of our
Fulham high streets.
Please Cllr. Harcourt, hear the collective voice of Fulham enterprise, in
reopening Harwood Terrace with immediate effect.”

9.

A petition to ‘Close Harwood Terrace permanently’ in support of the
experimental road closure was also started on 14 January 2020 and ended on
19 February 2020, having received 263 signatures an additional paper petition
was also received with 51 signatures supporting the permanent closure of
Harwood Terrace.

10. The residents’ petition request is as follows:
“We the undersigned petition the council to urgently make the current
temporary closure of Harwood Terrace permanent, as soon as possible.
The closure of Harwood Terrace has been hugely successful in closing a
horrendous rat run that subjected the residents of Harwood Terrace to up to:
400 cars per hour; unhealthy levels or pollution; dangerous driving from rat
runners; and, aggressive behaviour from the 'rat runners' against the residents
both before and after the current trial closure. Before the closure there were
also many minor, serious and near fatal accidents on Harwood Terrace itself
and the adjoining intersections with Kings Road.
The traffic across the whole area has significantly reduced as a result of the
closure and we expect will continue to do so as sat navs and driving apps are
updated over time, alongside driver behaviour.
The closure supports LBHF's and London's environmental agendas and
supports the reduction of car usage overall in the climate emergency in which
we find ourselves.”

Page 18

11. The petition to close Harwood Terrace permanently was submitted during the
statutory consultation period and will therefore be considered when deciding on
the future of the scheme as part of the statutory process.

Community Safety and Environment Policy & Accountability Committee
12. Two deputation requests were submitted to the Community Safety and
Environment Policy and Accountability Committee on 28 January 2020, by the
lead petitioner for the ‘reopening Harwood Terrace’ campaign. One of the
deputation requests was on the consultation and decision-making process for
the experiment. This deputation is answered in the body of this report. The
second deputation request is in relation to the number of PCNs issued at the
Bagleys Lane / New Kings Road junction, since the closure of Harwood
Terrace.
13. A Special Community Safety and Environment Policy and Accountability
Committee was called on 10 February 2020 to consider the Harwood Terrace
experimental scheme and respond to deputation requests.
SW6 Traffic Working Party
14. At the Special Community and Environment Policy and Accountability
Committee, residents supported a proposal to establish an SW6 Traffic Working
Party comprised of people from Harwood Terrace and neighbouring streets.
The group met on 17 and 24 February 2020. It considered immediate options
for Harwood Terrace and principles for a long-term vision for the neighbourhood
and made recommendations to the council.
Reasons for Decision
15. Under the Council’s Petitions Scheme, a petition which attracts 250 valid
signatures (of people who live, work or study in the borough) triggers
consideration of the petition by Cabinet. This petition meets this criterion.
16. At the Full Council meeting held on 22 January 2020 the Cabinet Member for
the Environment answered eight written public questions on this experimental
traffic scheme. An opportunity to raise supplementary questions was also
provided and responded to by the Cabinet Member.
17. An extraordinary Council meeting on 25 February 2020 will take place to
consider a special motion on the re-opening of Harwood Terrace.
Equality Implications
18. It is not anticipated that continuing with the experimental closure of Harwood
Terrace will have any direct negative implications on any groups with protected
characteristics under the terms of the Equality Act 2010. A referral for

Page 19

consideration and scrutiny by the PAC will allow for any such concerns to be
subject to public debate.
Implications verified/completed by: Peter Smith, Head of Policy & Strategy, tel.
07818 402486

Consultation
19. An online consultation was carried out between 18 February 2019 and 15
March 2019 that was open to all. This was supplemented with letters delivered
to all addresses in Harwood Terrace asking for residents’ opinions on closing
their street under an experimental traffic management order. In total 106
people from the area participated with 44 in favour, and 66 against the
closure. Of the 44 respondents in favour, 31 were residents of Harwood
Terrace.
20. Emergency services were notified prior to the experimental close coming into
force. During the experiment, emergency services were updated that no access
would be provided through Harwood Terrace until further notice. Transport for
London was also informed and no objections were received, before the decision
to proceed with the experimental road closure was taken.
21. Ten advanced warning signs were located around the immediate area on 4
October notifying that Harwood Terrace would be closed on 21 October. A
further 1,000 road closure notification letters were distributed in the wider area
on Friday 11 October 2019.
22. Objections to an experimental traffic order must be considered during the initial
six-month period after it comes into force, or if any modifications are made.
This serves as the formal consultation period, whereas the experimental
scheme can last up to 18 months during which a decision on whether it is to be
made permanent needs to be taken (but not during the initial six-months).
Although the legal process allows up to 18 months, the Cabinet Member is
committed to a resolution within a six-month time-frame of the closure.

Page 20

Agenda Item 5
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Report to:

Cabinet

Date:

02/03/2020

Subject:

MHCLG Rough Sleeping and Domestic Abuse Grants

Report of:

Deputy Leader - Councillor Sue Fennimore

Responsible Director: Jo Rowlands, Strategic Director, The Economy Department

Summary
The Council was notified during January and February 2020 that is has been
successful in securing several grants from the Ministry for Housing & Local
Government (MHCLG). In accordance with the Council’s Financial Regulations
Cabinet approval is required to amend revenue budgets which exceed £100,000.
Cabinet approval is therefore required to accept and receive the grant monies as
additional funding and to approve a corresponding expenditure budget to be spent in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the grant. The monies are to be spent
as set out in Table 1.
The funding will enable some existing services for rough sleepers, refugees and
survivors of domestic abuse to continue and be strengthened and to deliver new and
improved services to vulnerable people. There is no additional cost to the General
Fund from the recommendation in the report as additional expenditure will be fully
funded by the grant funding.

Recommendations
That Cabinet:
1. Approves the acceptance of the following grant allocations from the MHCLG
and approve corresponding amendments to expenditure budgets to be spent
in line with the relevant grant conditions:
Table 1
MHCLG Grant
Cold Weather /Derogation Fund
Cold Weather Fund/Winter Pressures
Rough Sleeping Initiative
Domestic Abuse Fund
BAMER Domestic Abuse Refuge Provision
TOTAL

Page 21

Amount
£71,940
£29,196
£626,013
£99,937
£101,142
£928,228

Wards Affected:

All

H&F Priorities
Please state how the outcome will contribute to our priorities
Our Priorities
Creating a compassionate council

Doing things with local residents, not to
them
Being ruthlessly financially efficient

Summary of how this report aligns to
the H&F Priorities
As a compassionate H&F is committed
to ending rough sleeping and the harm it
causes to individuals and communities.
New services will contribute to better
outcomes for homeless people.
The proposals will strengthen services
for survivors of domestic abuse.
The proposed services were informed
by the views of over 100 homeless
people and survivors of domestic abuse
The grants will enable the Council to
deliver new services and meet strategic
priorities from external funding sources.

Financial Impact
Due to the timing of the announcement of the grant funding allocations, the proposed
revenue budgets for 2020/21 did not include budgetary provision for the additional
grant funding and related expenditure. In accordance with the Financial Regulations,
Cabinet is required to approve any amendments to expenditure budgets when
additional funding becomes available. This report is therefore requesting that
Cabinet accept the MHCLG grant allocations totalling £928,228 as set out in the
recommendation and approve corresponding expenditure budgets to be spent in line
with the grant terms and conditions.
The majority of the grant allocations will continue previously grant funded services,
or to deliver new services as set out in the grant proposals. Any additional
expenditure in the provision of these services is intended to be fully met by the grant
allocations, with no additional call on the General Fund.
In relation to the Domestic Abuse Grant, part of the grant allocation can be used to
fund the cost of our existing refuge provision, enabling a one-off saving to the
General Fund of £59,937 in 2020/21.
The award of any contracts to be funded from these grant allocations will be subject
to the requirements of the Contract Standing Orders and any decision reports will
include the Financial Impact of those award decisions. Any expenditure incurred will
need to be in line with the terms and conditions of the grant to ensure that there is no
significant risk of having to repay grant monies.

Page 22

Legal Implications
There are no particular legal implications arising from this report. Legal advice will
be obtained, where necessary, when the grant monies are to be spent.

Contact Officer(s):
Name: Julia Copeland
Position: Strategic Commissioner
Telephone: 020 8753 1203
Email: Julia.Copeland@lbhf.gov.uk
Name: Felicity: Charles
Position: Community Safety Manager
Telephone: 020 8753 4311
Email: Felicity.Charles@lbhf.gov.uk
Name: Emily Hill
Position: Assistant Director, Finance
Telephone: 020 8753 3145
Email: Emily.Hill@lbhf.gov.uk
Name: Rhian Davies
Position: Borough Solicitor
Telephone: 07827 663794 Email: rhian.davies@lbhf.gov.uk

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report
None

DETAILED ANALYSIS
Proposals and Analysis of Options
1.

As a compassionate council, H&F is determined to end rough sleeping and the
harm it causes to individuals and communities. In addition, H&F has a strong
track record in responding effectively to the needs of survivors of domestic
abuse.

Grant allocations
2.

The grant allocations awarded to Hammersmith and Fulham are summarised in
the table below:

Page 23

Grant
Cold Weather/Derogation
Fund

Cold Weather Fund/Winter
Pressures

Rough Sleeping Initiative

Domestic Abuse Grant

Domestic Abuse Refuge
Provision
TOTAL

3.

4.

5.

Service Proposal
Accommodation and
subsistence costs for rough
sleepers with no recourse to
public funds
Homeless Hospital
discharge co-ordinator;
accommodation and
subsistence costs for
homeless people
24-hour rough sleeper
assessment hub; three
rough sleeper navigator
posts; two Housing First
workers; specialist dual
diagnosis support
Funding towards an existing
generic women’s refuge and
a new contract for a gay
men’s service.
Specialist BAMER refuge.

Amount
Up to £71,940

Up to £29,196

£626,013

£99,937

£101,142
£928,228

Rough Sleeping
In 2019-20, the MHCLG issued several funding prospectuses inviting local
authorities to bid for grants for rough sleeping initiatives (RSI). In 2018, H&F
was excluded from bidding for RSI monies due to too few rough sleepers. In
2019-20, the fund was opened up and H&F received £252,000. We have
successfully bid for grants to continue services funded in 2019-20 and for new
services in 2020-21 as set out above to meet identified gaps in local services to
meet our policy objective to end rough sleeping.
The proposed services are aligned with the recommendations in the
independent Rough Sleeping Commission’s report 2018 and informed by the
views of over 100 homeless people.
Domestic Abuse
In October 2019, the MHCLG announced a £15m Domestic Abuse fund for
accommodation services. We were successful in securing funding towards the
cost of our existing refuge provision for women and children experiencing
domestic abuse and a gay men’s service. The grant will enable a one-off saving
to the General Fund of £59,937 in 2020/21.
Specialist BAMER Refuge Provision

6.

In addition to the above funds we have secured £101,142 for a specialist
BAMER refuge.

Page 24

Reasons for Decision
7. The grants are new monies and approval to receive these grants and amend
corresponding expenditure budgets in excess of £100,000 is required in
accordance with the Council’s Financial Regulations.
Equality Implications
8. It is not anticipated there will be any adverse impact on protected groups
resulting from the recommendations in this report.
9. The receipt of these grant monies will enable the council to strengthen
services for women, BAMER women and gay men experiencing domestic
abuse which is anticipated to have a positive impact on these groups.
Implications verified by: Fawad Bhatti, Policy & Strategy Officer, tel. 07500
103617.
Consultation
10. Over 100 homeless people’s views were sought in developing the Rough
Sleeping Commission’s recommendations and the recommendations in this
report are aligned with the Commission’s.
11. In 2019-20, H&F has undertaken consultation with local specialist services
and survivors through the recent VAWG re-commissioning process. The
consultation highlighted the importance of safer accommodation for survivors
and, in particular, the need for specialist BME provision.

Page 25

Agenda Item 6
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham
Report to:

Cabinet

Date:

02/03/2020

Subject:

Civic Campus programme – Land Appropriation

Report of:

Cabinet Member for the Economy - Councillor Andrew Jones

Summary
In order for the redevelopment of the Civic Campus to proceed it is necessary to
appropriate the site for Planning purposes. This will allow the Council to utilise
powers to override third party rights that may prevent the implementation of the
proposed development.
The civic campus programme will bring significant benefits to the local economy,
including 204 new homes, of which half will be affordable, new offices for the Council
and a cinema, retail, restaurant and affordable workspace.
Recommendations
It is recommended that Cabinet:
1

Resolves that the areas of land at the Civic Campus referred to in this report
and shown edged red on the plans at Appendix 1 are no longer required for the
mixed commercial and civic purposes for which they are currently held.

2

Approves the appropriation of the areas of land edged red on the plans at
Appendix 1 pursuant to section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972 for the
planning purposes of facilitating redevelopment for residential and other uses
pursuant to section 226 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

3

Approves the use of powers to override easements and other rights in respect
of the land pursuant to section 203 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016.

Wards Affected:

Hammersmith Broadway

Page 26

H&F Priorities
Our Priorities


Building shared prosperity



Creating a compassionate
council



Doing things with local
residents, not to them



Being ruthlessly financially
efficient

Summary of how this report aligns to the
H&F Priorities
The programme represents a significant
opportunity for the Council to improve the
use of its public assets, drive efficiency of
operation and enhancement to public
services whilst simultaneously creating
social and economic value through
development of a new cinema and much
needed affordable housing.
The programme will further the Council’s
ability to provide compassionate, highquality services that residents can rely on.
Through the bottom up approach taken at
numerous public consultations and feedback
sessions, as well as, the co-production of
design with the Disabled People’s
Commission.
The investment in the programme will
generate a significant return, both financially
and socially for local residents.

Financial Impact
The Financial Impact of the wider Civic Campus scheme have been set out in
various decision reports, this report focuses on the need to appropriate the land to
enable the scheme to progress and the Financial Impact is limited to the
recommendations in this report.
The appropriation of land for planning purposes does not involve any significant
external cost, with costs relating to officer time relating to the decision.
As set out in the report, beneficiaries of right to light that are interfered with as a
result of the carrying out of the development will be entitled to compensation which
will be calculated on the basis of the diminution in value of their land. The conditional
agreement for lease includes an indemnity in respect of these costs and to ensure
that any costs arising are picked up by the developer rather than the council.
Legal Implications
The legal powers available to the Council to appropriate land and override third party
rights are identified and explained in this report. Cabinet approved a report in March
2018 which set out the six considerations for using these legal powers. These
considerations have been complied with as set out elsewhere in this report.
As explained in the body of this report as a local authority, the Council has the power
under section 203 of the Housing and Planning Act to carry out a development on
land even though the development would interfere with the rights of adjacent land

Page 27

owners, if it has appropriated the said land for planning purposes. These rights
include rights of light and easements. But for this provision the adjacent landowner
could apply for an injunction to stop the development.
However, the Housing and Planning Act 2016 further provides that the Local
Authority must compensate those affected by the exercise of the Section 203 power.
Under Section 204 of the 2016 Act there is a liability to pay compensation for any
interference with a relevant right or interest or breach of a restriction that is
authorised by Section 203 of the 2016 Act. The compensation is calculated on the
same basis as compensation payable under the Compulsory Purchase Act 1965 i.e.
based on the diminution of the value of the affected property because of the
interference with the right. In the use of the power it is considered that it should be
consistent with the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government’s
Guidance on Compulsory Purchase and Crichel Down Rules (July 2019)
Gowlings Solicitors have provided legal comments on this report and the use legal
powers set out in this report.
The Council is entitled to rely on their advice in considering how to proceed. The
legal comments have been verified by Adesuwa Omoregie Chief Solicitor (Planning
and Property).

Contact Officer(s):
Name: David Burns
Position: Assistant Director Growth
Telephone: 020 8753 6090
Email: David.Burns@lbhf.gov.uk
Name: Emily Hill
Position: Assistant Director, Finance
Telephone: 020 8753 3145
Email: Emily.Hill@lbhf.gov.uk
Name: Adesuwa Omoregie
Position: Chief Solicitor (Planning and Property)
Telephone: 0208 7532297
Email: adesuwa.omoregie@lbhf.gov.uk

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report
Not Applicable

Page 28

DETAILED ANALYSIS
Proposals and Analysis of Options
Background and Current Development Proposals
1.

This Civic Campus (formerly West King Street Renewal Project) programme
is a major regeneration programme for the Council.

2.

The overall objective for the Civic Campus programme is to reduce the
inefficiencies with the Council and to regenerate the West King Street
neighbourhood by opening a number of currently underutilised sites adjacent
to the existing Town Hall. It will offer transformational pubic services, a quality
working environment for employees and utilise public assets for the benefit
and growth of the local community, improving the high street retail offer and
connecting communities through the development of this part of King Street.

3.

It will transform West King Street into a civic, cultural and commercial
destination; delivering a new four-screen cinema, commercial space (with
affordable business space), 204 homes (of which 52% are affordable homes
for local people), café, restaurant and retail establishments, a public events
space and the extension and renewal of the Grade II-listed Town Hall. It will
transform the way the Council operates and delivers its services to residents.

4.

The Cabinet approved the strategic business case for the Civic Campus
Programme in December 2018, concluding that:
“The programme represents a significant opportunity for the Council to
improve the use of its public assets, drive efficiency of operation and
enhancement to public services whilst simultaneously creating social and
economic value through development of a new cinema and much needed
affordable housing.”

5.

The project will help the borough meet ambitions set out in its industrial
strategy, Economic Growth for Everyone, to make the borough one of the best
places in Europe to do business. It will provide new attractive start-up and
flexible workspace, while the refurbished town hall and new council
workspace will reduce the Council's expenditure on maintenance and
increase Council efficiency.

6.

The programme will contribute to the borough’s housing ambitions by building
204 new homes, of which 50% will be affordable. The borough’s Local Plan,
adopted in 2018 outlines the plans to deliver a considerable number of new
homes for the borough, of which a substantial portion will be affordable
housing opportunities. The Local Plan seeks to meet the needs of local
residents by delivering a minimum of 1,031 additional dwellings per annum,
half of which should be affordable.

7.

The programme will be delivered by the Council in a joint venture partnership
with A2Dominion Housing Group.

Page 29

8.

In March 2018, Cabinet agreed in principle to the appropriation of the area of
land edged red in Appendix 1 for to the planning purposes of facilitating
redevelopment for residential and other uses pursuant to section 122 of the
Local Government Act 1972. This was needed to override easements
covenants and other third party rights in respect of the land pursuant to
section 203 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 subject to the requirements
set out in the legal implications section of the report having been satisfied and
a further report for approval being made to Cabinet.
The Need for Appropriation

9.

There is a need to appropriate the site from mixed commercial and civic uses
to planning purposes in order to override third party rights, the existence of
which would otherwise prevent the implementation of the proposed
development.

10.

Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides a power to the
Council to appropriate land from one purpose to another. This purpose can be
any purpose for which the Council is authorised to acquire land by agreement.
However, the appropriation of land pursuant to this provision does not result
in the overriding of third party rights. This is facilitated by the powers set out in
Section 203 of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 (“section 203”). This, so
far as relevant to the facts of this case, provides that building or maintenance
work/use which interferes with rights or breaches restrictions as to user is
authorised if:


planning consent exists for the building works or use;



the work is carried out on land that has been appropriated by
the Council for planning purposes after 13th July 2016



the land could be compulsorily acquired by the Council for the
purposes of the building works or maintenance/use of buildings
or works constructed; and



the building work or maintenance/use is for purposes related to
the purposes for which the land was acquired or appropriated.

11.

In terms of process, case law has established that appropriation must involve
more than a mere decision to hold land for a different purpose. The Council
must consider whether the land is no longer needed in the public interest of
the locality for the purpose for which it is held. As the purpose of the
acquisition is to engage the provisions of section 203 of the 2016 Act the
Council should not make the appropriation unless it has good reason to think
that that interference with the rights affected is necessary.

12.

Case law has also established that appropriation is the equivalent of
compulsory purchase of the Council's own land and the same degree of
necessity must apply in each case.

Page 30

13.

In practice, section 203 means that any beneficiaries of third party rights that
are interfered with as a result of the carrying out of the development cannot
prevent the development from proceeding by seeking an injunction from the
courts, and as a result the development proposed can proceed. However,
those with the benefit of the rights that are interfered with will be entitled to
compensation which will be calculated on the basis of the diminution in value
of their land.

14.

Certain properties have been identified which are likely to benefit from a right
to light over the civic campus site. Analysis by the joint venture shows that a
number of properties identified are likely to experience an alteration in light
following completion of the development. The existence of these rights means
that unless the provisions of section 203 are engaged the development could
be prevented from proceeding. Accordingly, the purpose of this report is to
seek a resolution to appropriate the site to planning purposes so that the third
party interests can be overridden, allowing the development to proceed.
Why the land is no longer needed for its current purpose

15.

The most significant landholding in the civic estate is the Town Hall and the
surrounding parcels. The site itself provides an imposing and impressive
facade with the original rear facing towards King Street. The site is comprised
of a dated and unfit for purpose Town Hall extension and a Grade II listed
Town Hall. Before the offices were decanted the Town Hall and the Town Hall
Extension were both used by council workers as well as for community
functions and as a public event space.

16.

The Town Hall has major life cycle investment requirements. The Town Hall
Extension was opened in 1971 and the majority of the services, fixtures and
fittings to building are the originals and are life expired. Whilst the basic
structure is sound, detailed condition surveys have confirmed that it is in a
very poor state both internally and externally, with inefficient systems, blown
windows and poor natural heating control.

17.

The future of the building has been in doubt since the mid-90’s leading to only
minimal/absolutely essential works or holding repairs being carried out. The
backlog of maintenance to the building has grown considerably in the past
twenty years. The estimated costs of addressing the critical and refurbishment
items within a one-year programme (requiring decant) is £19m. The total
costs of fully refurbishing the Town Hall Extension is £35m. This excludes any
public realm improvements and any demolition of the adjoining structures
between the Town Hall and the Town Hall Extension.

18.

The other land holdings are the Council car park and old Register office that
are no longer in use and the site of the former Odeon cinema.

19.

The Council and the joint venture have also agreed terms with the London
Quakers Property Trust to build a new Meeting House to free up the existing
building to complete the new Civic Campus redevelopment site.

Page 31

Planning purposes and public benefits
20.

An appropriation for planning purposes is a reference to the appropriation of it
for purposes for which it can be acquired under sections 226 or 227 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (TCPA). In this case it is necessary to
consider whether the land would be capable of being acquired under section
226 of the TCPA.

21.

Section 226 empowers a local authority, on being authorised to do so by the
Secretary of State, to acquire compulsorily land its area:

If the authority think that the acquisition will facilitate the carrying out of
development, re-development or improvement on or in relation to the land
(section 226(1)(a)); or


22.

which is required for a purpose which it is necessary to achieve in the
interests of the proper planning of an area in which that land is situated
(Section 226(1)(b)).
In this case it is appropriate to consider whether the land could be
acquired compulsorily under the powers conferred by section 226(1)(a).
Section 226(1A) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that
a local authority must not exercise its power of compulsory acquisition
under section 226(1)(a), unless it thinks that the development,
redevelopment or improvement is likely to contribute to the achievement of
any one or more of the following objectives:



the promotion or improvement of the economic well-being of the
area;



the promotion or improvement of the social well-being of the area; and



the promotion or improvement of the environmental well-being of the
area.

23.

It is the view of officers, supported by legal advice, that the Civic Campus site
could be acquired compulsorily under section 226(1)(a) in order to facilitate
the carrying out of redevelopment and that such redevelopment would
advance all three objectives identified at Section 226(1A).

24.

As, subject to satisfying the relevant requirements, the effect of
appropriation would be to engage the override provisions of section 203 of
the 2016 Act it is necessary to consider whether the facilitation of the
development would justify an interference with the rights of third parties. In
making that decision regard has been given to the advice and guidance
contained in the current MHCLG Guidance on Compulsory Purchase (July
2019).

25.

Fundamentally, the decision to appropriate in order to engage section 203
of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 should only be made where it is
necessary, there is a compelling case in the public interest and the Council

Page 32

should be sure that the purposes for which the powers are being exercised
justify interfering with the human rights of those whose interests will be
affected. Particular consideration should be given to the provisions of
Article 8 and Article 1 of the First Protocol to the European Convention on
Human Rights and this is considered below.
26.

Turning to the planning policy support for the Civic Campus
redevelopment, for the purposes of s38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 the Statutory Development Plan for the
area in which the site is situated comprises (1) the London Plan and (2) the
Hammersmith and Fulham Local Plan 2018.

27.

Strategic planning guidance within the London Plan and the proposed
replacement London Plan sets demanding housing targets for all London
Boroughs. The Council has been set an annual target of delivering
approximately 1,609 new homes every year for the next 10 years.

28.

In terms of affordable housing, the London Plan policy identifies a
requirement that Boroughs seek to maximise the provision of affordable
housing in new developments and that 60% of all affordable housing should
be affordable or social rent and 40% intermediate housing. The Local Plan
requires that 50% of all new housing, on developments of 11 or more units, is
affordable and that 60% of this is affordable/social rent consistent with the
London Plan target.

29.

The Hammersmith and Fulham Local Plan was adopted in February 2018:

30.

Local Plan Strategic Policy HRA sets a target of delivering 2,800 homes and
10,000 indicative new jobs within the Hammersmith Regeneration Area
through encouraging the regeneration of the town centre and building upon
the centre’s major locational advantages for office and retail development.
With particular regard to the proposal, Policy HRA seeks to actively engage
with residents in delivering benefits for the surrounding area; supports a
wide range of retail, office, local government services, leisure, arts,
entertainment, community facilities and housing; promotes the continuation
of the town centre as a key strategic office location through provision of
modernised office blocks; supports proposals that extend Hammersmith’s
arts and leisure offer.

31.

Policy HRA states that proposals within the regeneration area should respond
positively to local character and history, taking opportunities to enhance
heritage assets; improve pedestrian and cycle infrastructure; improve the
range and quality of specialist shops and services; provide appropriate social,
physical, environmental and transport infrastructure; secure economic
benefits for the wider community through job opportunities and recruitment;
and seek the creation of public spaces, architecture and public realm of the
highest quality. Improving connections of Furnivall Gardens with the area is
also sought.

32.

Local Plan Strategic Policy HRA1 relates specifically to the Town Hall
Extension, adjacent land and Nigel Playfair Avenue – the land comprising the
site of the Civic Campus redevelopment less the Town Hall and Nigel Playfair.

Page 33

This supports the upgrade of the Town Hall Extension and neighbouring land
to provide refurbished or replacement council offices with a mix of other uses
at street level to a high quality design. Proposals are expected to include
replacement council offices and a mix of town centre uses; an active frontage
to King Street; opening up the Grade II Town Hall frontage or refurbishing the
Extension; provide a cinema and improve links to Furnivall gardens; ensure
the building height is generally consistent with the existing height of the
townscape with regard to enhancing the setting of the Town Hall and river
views.
33.

The Civic Campus redevelopment is key to regenerating this part of the town
centre and Policy HRA1 supports a comprehensive redevelopment. The
proposed development comprises housing, offices, retail at ground floor onto
King Street, a new public realm, new civic square, the demolition of the Town
Hall Extension and the refurbishment, retention and extension of the Town
Hall as a civic space. The realignment and activation of Nigel Playfair West
would improve links through the river and Furnivall Gardens, whilst the
community was actively engaged in the development process.

34.

The quantum of office and retail space is supported given the town centre
location being cited as an appropriate location for the creation of Class B1
and A Class floor space.

35.

There is therefore extensive planning policy support for the development
proposals and planning permission was granted on 22th October 2019.

36.

Officers have considered whether the Civic Campus redevelopment could be
blocked by any physical or legal impediments to implementation. Officers are
of the view that there are no obvious physical or legal impediments to
implementation.

37.

Cabinet should note that the Joint Venture is contractually committed to
ensuring that the Civic Campus redevelopment can be delivered once a
number of conditions precedent (in the land sale agreement), including the
land appropriation, are satisfied.

38.

Public Benefits


The project will create a distinctive high quality, mixed-use
development to include:



At least 50% affordable housing for local residents;




Demolishing the existing Town Hall extension to create a new
public plaza;
Staying within the massing and height of the former 2014 scheme;



Opening up views of the Grade II Listed Town Hall;



Renovating, refurbishing and extending Town Hall to create space
for public and council use;

Page 34



A modern new cinema;



New affordable, flexible office space for business start-ups;



A new arts quarter alongside new cafes, shops and restaurants;



Improved green spaces to help link King Street to the riverside,
measures to green the environment and minimise the buildings’
carbon footprint;



Inclusive design to ensure excellent disability access

Steps taken to negotiate the release of rights by agreement
39.

Before making a decision on the appropriation it is necessary to take
reasonable steps to ascertain who may have a property right or interest that
may be affected by the development proposals. With this in mind, reasonable
enquiries were undertaken including land registry title searches, and in
respect of Council-owned properties, checking the Council’s leasehold and
tenancy details to ascertain those whose rights may be interfered with as a
result of the Civic Campus programme.

40.

Avison Young’s specialist rights of light consultants on behalf of the developer
identified parties who may benefit from rights to light that could be infringed by
the Civic Campus programme. These affected parties include the following:


All west facing units within 1-224 Riverside Gardens only those
with long term property interests



150-178A King Street (even numbers), excluding 162-170 King
Street (even numbers)



209-217 King Street (odd numbers)



1-6 Cromwell Mansions only those with long term property
interests



1-48 Cromwell Mansions only those with long term property
interests



19-26 Marryat Court, Cromwell Avenue only those with long term
property interests

41.

In the week commencing 10th February 2020, letters were sent by the Council
to all identified potentially affected parties with long term property interests
indicating its intention to appropriate the Civic Campus site to planning
purposes and inviting comments.

42.

A verbal update on any feedback will be provided at the Cabinet meeting.

Page 35

43.

Avison Young, on behalf of the Council, is in discussion with all parties who
have raised concerns over the impact on their properties. It is the view of
officers that it is highly unlikely that it will be possible to reach agreement with
all affected parties to release all necessary rights within a reasonable time or
at all.

44.

It is therefore clear that for the Civic Campus redevelopment to proceed within
a reasonable timescale that it is necessary to appropriate the land to secure
the benefits associated with the proposed scheme. As a result, officers are of
the view that unless the land is appropriated for planning purposes in order to
engage the override provisions of section 203 of the 2016 Act the
redevelopment proposals for the Civic Campus will not go ahead at all or
could be substantially delayed.

Could the Public Benefits Be Achieved in the Absence of the
Interference with Rights?
45.

Officers have considered whether the development could proceed without
interfering with the rights identified. Officers are satisfied that the development
could not proceed and the associated benefits could not be achieved without
giving rise to all or some of the infringements for which section 203 is being
engaged. A cut back analysis to the Civic Campus scheme has been
undertaken to demonstrate how much of the proposed building would have to
be removed in order not to cause any interference with the easement of light
enjoyed by the surrounding property owners. This cut back demonstrates that,
due to either the proximity of the surrounding properties, or their residential
use, the proposed development would be significantly reduced in scale and
massing. The resultant scheme would be reduced by c100,000 sq ft in order
to remove the rights of light impact on surrounding buildings – a significant
reduction in the development. This would then have a consequent impact on
scheme viability and deliverability.

46.

To conclude, any alternative approach to the development which seeks to
avoid interference with the rights would reduce the deliverability or even
prevent a development which will bring forward a new Civic Campus and 204
new homes, including 50% affordable homes, the refurbishment, retention
and extension of the Town Hall as a civic space, as well as the modern office
and retail space, new cinema, and accessibility and public realm
improvements.
Human Rights Issues

47.

As indicated above, consideration must be given to the interference with
rights protected by the Human Rights Act 1998. In this case a decision to
override easements and other rights represents an interference with rights
protected under Article 1 of the Protocol to the European Convention on
Human Rights. (the right to peaceful enjoyment of possessions) and Article 8
of the European Convention on Human Rights (right to respect for private
and family life, home and correspondence). Any decision to interfere with
such rights must strike a fair balance between the public interest associated

Page 36

with the development proposals referred to above and the interference with
private rights.
48.

Given the clear public benefit associated with the development proposals
referred to in the body of the report, the fact that there is no feasible
alternative means of achieving that public benefit, and a compelling case in
the public interest for the use of the powers to override rights and the
availability of compensation to those whose rights are overridden calculated
on a diminution in value basis, it is considered that the interference with the
private rights of those affected would be lawful, justified and proportionate.
There is no feasible alternative scheme that would deliver the same benefits
as this one.

Conclusion
49.

Officers are satisfied that:


The civic campus site is no longer needed for its current
purpose;



There is a compelling case in the public interest to appropriate
the sites to planning purposes in order to engage the override
provisions of section 203 of the 2016 Act and the necessity test
is satisfied



Any interference with the human rights of those who benefit from
the rights to be overridden is justified and the use of section 203
represents a proportionate approach.

OPTIONS AND ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS
50.

Appropriation is the only viable option that will enable the redevelopment of
The Civic campus.
Reasons for Decision

51.

The key reasons for this decision are:
 The civic campus is no longer needed for its current purpose;
 There will a significant public benefit of the new development (see
paragraph 38)
 The new development will increase the supply of genuinely affordable
housing;

Providing local economic investment, including job and training
opportunities;
 There is a compelling case in the public interest to appropriate the sites to
planning purposes in order to engage the override provisions of section
203 of the 2016 Act and the necessity test is satisfied
 Any interference with the human rights of those who benefit from the
rights to be overridden is justified and the use of section 203 represents a
proportionate approach.

Page 37

Equality Implications
52.

In deciding to proceed with the appropriation of land for planning purposes,
the Council must pay due regard to its Public-Sector Equality Duty (PSED), as
set out in Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010 (the 2010 Act). The PSED
provides that a public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due
regard to the need to:
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under this Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

53.

Consideration must also be given to whether, if the decision is made to go
ahead, it will be possible to mitigate any adverse impact on an protracted
group, or to take steps to promote equality of opportunity by, for example,
treating an affected group more favourably.

54.

Officers have previously taken this into account in the assessment of the
planning and are mindful of this duty in making the recommendations in this
Report. Generally, it is considered that the impacts of the Development are
positive. The proposals comprise measures to ensure that the residential units
are accessible and adaptable, with 10% of units having a layout and size
specifically enabling use by a wheelchair users. The development as a whole
has embraced the principles of accessible and inclusive design with the Town
Hall and commercial uses being fully accessible. This is considered to be a
significant improvement on the current offer.
Risk Management Implications

55.

As part of the Civic Campus Programme, officers have considered the risks
associated with the various stages of this programme and sought to put in
place appropriate mitigations. Specifically, for this report, officers have sought
appropriate external technical advice in respect of matters relating to
appropriation, right to light and rights of access. Officers also need to confirm
in the report that the financial risks, including potential compensation, will be
managed by the Joint Venture and are incorporated in the Joint Venture’s
financial model.

56.

It is recommended that officers continue to review, monitor, and escalate as
appropriate until the programme objectives have been delivered and ensure
that new risks identified are assigned to risk owners. The implications sections
in this report identifies a number of legal and financial risks which will need to
be closely monitored and managed and subject to regular reporting to
Members.

57. Given the significance, value and complexity of the proposed programme,
officers should, as advised in previous reports, set out the officer and member
governance arrangements which will provide programme oversight and

Page 38

assurance and ensure that costs are appropriately controlled, and key actions
taken once appropriate consents and approvals have been confirmed.
Implications verified/completed by: David Hughes, Director of Audit, Fraud,
Risk and Insurance, tel: 0207 361 2389
Property Implications
58.

The Council’s site assembly for the Civic Campus development has been
previously outlined in previous Cabinet reports and this included setting out
the reasons using powers under s203 Housing Act 2016. The Council has
employed specialists in rights of light to undertake a strategy and outline next
steps.
Implications verified/completed by: Nigel Brown, Head of asset strategy and
portfolio management, tel: 07773 281039.
Consultation

59.

Any affected properties will be specifically consulted.

List of Appendices:
Appendix 1 – Red line plan of the site

Page 39

EET

STUDLA

ND STR

APPENDIX 1 - CIVIC CAMPUS LAND APPROPRIATION PLAN
KING STREET
10

LONDON W6
8

32

3

5

8
6

180
Shelter

ND STR
EE

176

178a 178

2

Bank

174

The
Gospel
Hall

172

King S
Cloister

170

164

PH

166

211

227

225

215 217

154

152

PH

Shelter

IR AVENUE
NIGEL PLAYFA

9 to 16

CROMWELL AVENUE

148

TREET

87

1 to 8

El Sub Sta

150

KING S

Station

181 to 1

HAMPSHIRE HOG LA

156

209

Cycle Hire

41 to 48

Rivercourt
Church House

158 15
6a

179

182

STUDLA

1

2

192

36

1

T

4

194 to 200

Riverside

Gardens

64 to 75
44 to 55

AVENUE

5

24 to 34

20

Register Office

DENS

Telephon

12 to 23

Hammersmith Friends
Meeting House

IDE GAR

ourt

35 to 43

LAYFAIR

RIVERS

NIGEL P

18

19 to 26

108 to 11

Games C

33 to 40

Marryat Court

1 to 18

76 to 83
25 to 32

Hammersmith
Town Hall

1 to 11

GREAT W
EST ROA
D

Furnivall Gardens
Play Area

pel

ate)

Cha

(priv

©

Crown copyright and database rights
2020 OS Licence No. LA100019223

12

Page 40

Drawing No. 58800/12/1
Sale 1 : 750 @ A3
February 2020

e

Agenda Item 7

NOTICE OF CONSIDERATION OF A KEY DECISION
In accordance with paragraph 9 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the Authority hereby gives notice of
Key Decisions which the Cabinet, Cabinet Members or Chief Officers intend to consider. The list
may change from the date of publication as further items may be entered.

NOTICE OF THE INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN
PRIVATE
The Authority also hereby gives notice in accordance with paragraph 5 of the above
Regulations that it may meet in private to consider Key Decisions going to a Cabinet meeting
which may contain confidential or exempt information.
Reports relating to Cabinet key decisions which may be considered in private are indicated in
the list of Cabinet Key Decisions below, with the reasons for the decision being made in
private. Any person is able to make representations to the Cabinet if he/she believes the
Cabinet decision should instead be made in the public at the Cabinet meeting. If you want to
make such representations, please e-mail Katia Neale on katia.neale@lbhf.gov.uk. You will
then be sent a response in reply to your representations. Both your representations and the
Executive’s response will be published on the Council’s website at least 5 working days before
the Cabinet meeting.

KEY DECISIONS PROPOSED TO BE MADE BY THE AUTHORITY FROM
FEBRUARY UNTIL JUNE 2020
The following is a list of Key Decisions which the Authority proposes to take from
February 2020. The list may change over the next few weeks.
KEY DECISIONS are those which are likely to result in one or more of the following:


Any expenditure or savings which are significant (ie. in excess of £300,000) in
relation to the Council’s budget for the service function to which the decision
relates;



Anything affecting communities living or working in an area comprising two or
more wards in the borough;



Anything affecting the budget and policy framework set by the Council.

The Key Decisions List will be updated and published on the Council’s website at least
on a monthly basis.
NB: Key Decisions will generally be taken by the Executive at the Cabinet, by a Cabinet
Member or by a Chief Officer.
If you have any queries on this Key Decisions List, please contact
Katia Neale on 07776 672 956 or by e-mail to katia.neale@lbhf.gov.uk

Page 41

Access to Key Decision reports and other relevant documents
Key Decision reports and documents relevant to matters to be considered at the Authority by
Cabinet only, will be available on the Council’s website (www.lbhf.org.uk) a minimum of 5
working days before the Cabinet meeting. Further information, and other relevant documents
as they become available, can be obtained from the contact officer shown in column 4 of the
list below.
Decisions
All Key Decisions will be subject to a 3-day call-in before they can be implemented, unless
called in by Councillors.
Making your Views Heard
You can comment on any of the items in this list by contacting the officer shown in column 4.
You can also submit a deputation to the Cabinet related to Cabinet Key Decisions only. Full
details of how to do this (and the date by which a deputation must be submitted) will be shown
in the Cabinet agenda.

LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM: CABINET 2019/20
Leader:
Deputy Leader:
Cabinet Member for the Environment:
Cabinet Member for Housing:
Cabinet Member for the Economy and the Arts:
Cabinet Member for Health and Adult Social Care:
Cabinet Member for Children and Education:
Cabinet Member for Finance and Commercial Services:
Cabinet Member for Public Services Reform:
Cabinet Member for Strategy:

Key Decisions List No. 89 (published 20 February 2020)

Page 42

Councillor Stephen Cowan
Councillor Sue Fennimore
Councillor Wesley Harcourt
Councillor Lisa Homan
Councillor Andrew Jones
Councillor Ben Coleman
Councillor Larry Culhane
Councillor Max Schmid
Councillor Adam Connell
Councillor Sue Macmillan

KEY DECISIONS LIST – FEBRUARY 2020
The list also includes decisions proposed to be made by future Cabinet meetings
Where column 3 shows a report as EXEMPT, the report for
this proposed decision will be considered at the private Cabinet meeting. Anybody may make
representations to the Cabinet to the effect that the report should be considered at the open
Cabinet meeting (see above).
* All these decisions may be called in by Councillors; If a decision is called in, it will not be capable of
implementation until a final decision is made.
Decision to
be Made by

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision
Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

Councillor Max Schmid

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

February 2020
Cabinet
Member for
Finance
and
Commercial
Services

Strategic
Director of
the
Economy
Department

February
2020
Reason:
Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between
£1.5m and
£5m.

Capital planned Maintenance
Programme
The Facilities Capital Maintenance
and repairs programme across the
corporate estate

Ward(s):
All Wards

PART OPEN

Contact officer: Keith
Fraser

PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

February
2020

Corporate Property Services
Framework

Reason:
Revenue up
to £500k and
Capital up to
1.5m

The report outlines revised LOTS
to ensure external advice can be
secured on a wide range of
property advice to ensure the
administrations outcomes on
assets are delivered

Tel: 07717 847 361
Keith.Fraser@lbhf.gov.uk

Cabinet Member for
Finance and
Commercial Services

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Nigel
Brown, David Burns
Tel: 020 8753 2835,
Nigel.Brown@lbhf.gov.uk,
David.Burns@lbhf.gov.uk

Page 43

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision
Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Cabinet
Member for
Housing

February
2020

Upgrade of Controlled Door
Access Equipment

Cabinet Member for
Housing

Reason:
Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between
£1.5m and
£5m.
Strategic
Director
Finance &
Governance

February
2020
Reason:
Revenue up
to £500k and
Capital up to
1.5m

To upgrade the existing door entry
systems with modern day audio,
video and GSM equipment to
prevent unauthorised access to
residential properties providing
additional security for residents.

Toxicology Contract
Contract for provision of toxicology
services for West London
Coroner's Court (consortium of 6
West London Boroughs hosted by
LBHF).
PART OPEN

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
All Wards
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer: Steve of any supporting
Glazebrook
documentation
Tel: 07976345556
and / or
Steve.Glazebrook@lbhf.gov.
background
uk
papers to be
considered.
Cabinet Member for the
Environment

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer:
Christina Houghton

PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
Strategic
Director of
the
Economy
Department

February
2020
Reason:
Revenue up
to £500k and
Capital up to
1.5m

37 Margravine Gardens, W6 Major Refurbishment
This report seeks approval to let a
contract to undertake major
refurbishment works to 37
Margravine Gardens W6. This
project is one which the Council
has committed to deliver as part of
the Asset Management
Compliance Strategy and Capital
Programme approved at 1st July
Cabinet.
Exempt Appendix:-

Page 44

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

Cabinet Member for
Housing

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
Fulham Reach
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer:
of any supporting
Richard Buckley
documentation
and / or
richard.buckley@lbhf.gov.uk
background
papers to be
considered.

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision
Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
Strategic
Director of
the
Economy
Department

February
2020
Reason:
Revenue up
to £500k and
Capital up to
1.5m

Charecroft Estate Lift
Modernisation
Modernisation of eight passenger
lifts serving Charecroft estate
(Woodford Court A&B; Roseford
Court A&B; Shepherds Court A&B;
Bush Court A&B)
PART OPEN
PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

Director
Children's
Services

February
2020
Reason:
Revenue up
to £500k and
Capital up to
1.5m

Interim Payment for AP Places
Approval to pay interim payment to
AP provider , prior to full three
year SLA being approved in
January

Cabinet Member for
Housing

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
Addison
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer:
of any supporting
Richard Buckley
documentation
and / or
richard.buckley@lbhf.gov.uk
background
papers to be
considered.

Cabinet Member for
Children and Education

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Kevin
Gordon
Tel: 07970 150897
Kevin.Gordon@lbhf.gov.uk

Page 45

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision

Strategic
Director
Finance &
Governance

Strategic
Director of
the
Economy
Department

Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

February
2020

Approval to award a call off
contract for stationery and
office supplies

Cabinet Member for
Finance and
Commercial Services

Reason:

Award of new stationery contract.

Ward(s):
All Wards

Revenue up
to £500k and
Capital up to
1.5m

PART OPEN

Contact officer: Geoff
Sorrell

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

February
2020
Reason:
Revenue up
to £500k and
Capital up to
1.5m

Cabinet
Member for
Finance
and
Commercial
Services

February
2020
Reason:
Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between
£1.5m and
£5m.

PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
Upgrade of Controlled Door
Access Equipment
To upgrade the existing controlled
door access equipment with
modern systems using a cloud
based platform.

Banking Services Procurement
Strategy
Re-tender for the provision of
banking services, as the current
contract is due to expire in March
2020. Estimated value is £600k for
a 10 year contract.

Page 46

geoff.sorrell@lbhf.gov.uk

Cabinet Member for
Housing

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
All Wards
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer: Steve of any supporting
Glazebrook
documentation
Tel: 07976345556
and / or
Steve.Glazebrook@lbhf.gov.
background
uk
papers to be
considered.
Cabinet Member for
Finance and
Commercial Services

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer:

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision

Strategic
Director of
Environmen
t

February
2020

Procurement strategy in relation
to the procurement of books
and audio materials for the
libraries via a framework
agreement

Reason:
Revenue up
to £500k and
Capital up to
1.5m

Cabinet
Member for
Finance
and
Commercial
Services

February
2020
Reason:
Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between
£1.5m and
£5m.

Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

For the Council to call off from the
new two-year (plus two-year
extension) framework agreement
for the supply of library books and
audio-visual materials at a total
estimated cost for the initial two
years of £200,000 (plus potentially
a further £200,000). The award by
WSCC will take place in midDecember 2019 and the new
framework agreement will begin 1
April 2020.
Offsite Records Storage Service
Offsite Records Storage Service,
for the secure storage of
documents and records in a
physical format including paper,
microfilms, microfiche and some
objects. This will also include
retrieval services with the
capability of doing scan on
demand as well as a bulk
scanning service and secure
destruction of records as
requested.
PART OPEN
PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

Page 47

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

Cabinet Member for the
Economy

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer:

Cabinet Member for
Finance and
Commercial Services

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
All Wards
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer:
of any supporting
Anthea Ferguson,
documentation
Edward Crow
and / or
Tel: 02087536641,
background
Anthea.Ferguson@lbhf.gov.
papers to be
uk,
considered.
Edward.Crow@lbhf.gov.uk

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision

Cabinet
Member for
Health and
Adult Social
Care

February
2020

APPROVAL FOR CONTRACT
EXTENSION FOR THE
SUPPORT AND ADVICE ON
SEXUAL HEALTH (SASH)
SERVICE

Cabinet
Member for
Children
and
Education

Cabinet
Member for
Health and
Adult Social
Care

Reason:
Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between
£1.5m and
£5m.

By March
2020
Reason:
Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between
£1.5m and
£5m.

Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Contract extension report detailing
reasons for extension.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

Cabinet Member for
Health and Adult Social
Care

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Nicola
Ashton
Tel: 020 8753 5359
Nicola.Ashton@lbhf.gov.uk

Rebalancing of CHS LA/CCG
funding arrangements
Rebalancing of SALT contract for
LA to take on greater contribution.
Introduction of protocol for
determining LA/CCG financial
contributions to complex cases
PART OPEN

Cabinet Member for
Children and Education

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Paul
Triantis
Paul.Triantis@lbhf.gov.uk

PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

February
2020

Elmgrove extra care
accommodation direct award
report

Reason:
Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between
£1.5m and
£5m.

Request to continue the extra care
contract at Elmgrove with Notting
Hill Genesis beyond the current
contract end date for a further one
year.

Page 48

Cabinet Member for
Health and Adult Social
Care

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
All Wards
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer: Laura of any supporting
Palfreeman
documentation
Tel: 0208 753 1953
and / or
Laura.Palfreeman@lbhf.gov.
background
uk
papers to be
considered.

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision

Cabinet
Member for
Health and
Adult Social
Care

February
2020

Mental health supported
accommodation services

Reason:
Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between
£1.5m and
£5m.

Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Direct award of these services
from April 1st 2020-31st March
2021 in order for a planned
programme of service
reconfiguration to happen in year
along with a programme of
strength based reviews of the
residents living in the services.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

Cabinet Member for
Health and Adult Social
Care

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
All Wards
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer:
of any supporting
Michele Roberts
documentation
Tel: 020 8834 4734
and / or
Michele.Roberts@lbhf.gov.u
background
k
papers to be
considered.

March 2020
Cabinet

2 Mar 2020

Reason:
value in
excess of £5
million and
policies or
new income,
grants or
overspend
above
£100,000

Civic Campus - appropriation of
land
Appropriation of land and rights of
light strategy and proposals - Civic
Campus
Reasons for urgency:
In order to comply with statutory
timetables in relation to public
notices for appropriation and the
expiry of the notice period, ahead
of the entering into contracts and
starting on site, the Council is now
required to make the decision
earlier than expected.
PART OPEN
PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

Page 49

Cabinet Member for the
Economy

Ward(s):
Hammersmith
Broadway
Contact officer: David
Burns, Nigel Brown
Tel: 020 8753 2835
David.Burns@lbhf.gov.uk,
Nigel.Brown@lbhf.gov.uk

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision

Cabinet

Before 18
Mar 2020

Rough Sleeping and Domestic
Abuse Services - New Income

Reason:
value in
excess of £5
million and
policies or
new income,
grants or
overspend
above
£100,000

Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

We have been successful in
bidding for various grants from the
MHCLG for rough sleeping and
domestic abuse services. We
need approval to receive and
spend the monies in 2019-20 and
2020-21.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

Deputy Leader

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Julia
Copeland
Tel: 0208 753 1203
julia.copeland@lbhf.gov.uk

Reasons for Urgency:
The MHCLG timescales for
implementing the new services are
very short. if we don't get approval
to spend the grant we will lose the
funding. There is insufficient time
to take to Cabinet and to
undertake a competitive
procurement.
PART OPEN
PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

Cabinet

Before 18
Mar 2020

MHCLG Grant to IKWRO for
Domestic Abuse Refuge
Provision

Reason:
value in
excess of £5
million and
policies or
new income,
grants or
overspend
above
£100,000

We are seeking approval to spend
grant funding of £101,142
received from the Ministry of
Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) for the
provision of specialist BAMER
refuge delivered by Iranian,
Kurdish, Women's Rights
Organisation (IKWRO).

Page 50

Cabinet Member for the
Environment

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
All Wards
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer:
of any supporting
Felicity Charles
documentation
Tel: 02087534311
and / or
Felicity.Charles@lbhf.gov.uk
background
papers to be
considered.

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision
Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

Reasons for urgency:
The Council received notification
regarding the successul funding
outcome on 20/02/2020 and
service delivery is required to
commence on 01/04/2020. If we
do not adhere to the timescales
we risk losing the grant. Given the
very short timescales provided by
MHCLG we are requesting an
urgent decision.
Cabinet
Member for
Housing

March 2020

Renewal of Door Entry Systems

Reason:

Renewal of aged door entry
systems which serve Council
Residential Dwellings that have a
communal access.

Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between
£1.5m and
£5m
Cabinet
27 Mar 2020
Member for
the
Environment
Reason:
Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between
£1.5m and
£5m
Cabinet
Member for
Children
and
Education

2 Mar 2020

Reason:
Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between

Prevent 20/21 Grant Agreement
This item is the proposed Grant
Agreement with the Home Office
for funding for the LBHF/RBKC
Prevent team for the upcoming
financial year, 2020/2021.The
amount of funding proposed is
between cca £430,000-cca
£480,000, and covers officer posts
and projects.

Lot 1 and Lot 2 School Meals
Extension Report
Key decision, signed off by
Cabinet Member, to extend the
School Meals Lot 1 and Lot 2
contracts.

Cabinet Member for
Housing

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
All Wards
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer: Steve of any supporting
Glazebrook
documentation
Tel: 07976345556
and / or
Steve.Glazebrook@lbhf.gov.
background
uk
papers to be
considered.
Deputy Leader

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Tina
Bencik
Tina.Bencik@lbhf.gov.uk

Cabinet Member for
Children and Education

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Claire
O’Shea
Tel: 07879 815 087
Claire.O’Shea@lbhf.gov.uk

Page 51

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.
A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision
Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

£1.5m and
£5m

considered.

Cabinet
March 2020
Member for
the
Environment
Reason:
Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between
£1.5m and
£5m

CCTV Maintenance and
Installation Contract procurement strategy

Cabinet
Member for
Children
and
Education

IMPROVING MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES FOR CHILDREN AND
ADOLESCENTS IN
HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM

Before 31
Mar 2020
Reason:
Revenue
between
£500,000
and £5m and
Capital
between
£1.5m and
£5m

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

Procurement strategy report for
the CCTV maintenance and
installation contract, replacing the
short term contract that expires on
30 June 2020. The new contract
has to be operational from 01 July
2020.

Hammersmith & Fulham’s Child
and Adolescent Mental Health
Services (CAMHS) provide multidisciplinary assessment, and
therapeutic and
psychopharmacological
interventions for children and
young people up to the age of 18
years. In November 2019 funding
for the provision was approved for
2018/19 (retrospectively) and
19/20, with delegated authority to
the Director of Children’s Services
for 1920/21. Accordingly this
report seeks approval for
continuation of CAMHS services
for contract year 1920/21.

Cabinet Member for the
Environment

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Gary
Smith
Gary.Smith@lbhf.gov.uk

Cabinet Member for
Children and Education

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Craig
Holden
Tel: 07850 541 477
Craig.Holden@lbhf.gov.uk

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.
A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

April 2020
Cabinet

20 Apr 2020

Reason:
Affects 2 or
more wards

Climate Change and Ecological
Emergency Traffic and Parking
Measures
The report sets out new transport
policies and initiatives that support
H&F Climate Change to reduce
the amount of greenhouse gasses
(GHG), sources of noise, light and
air pollution, by introducing traffic,
parking and transport measures,
with the aim of being one of the

Page 52

Cabinet Member for the
Environment

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
All Wards
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer: Chris
of any supporting
Bainbridge
documentation
Tel: 0208 753 3354
and / or
chris.bainbridge@lbhf.gov.u
background
k
papers to be

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision
Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

greenest Councils in the UK and
carbon neutral by 2030.
Cabinet

20 Apr 2020

Reason:
value in
excess of £5
million and
policies or
new income,
grants or
overspend
above
£100,000

Cabinet

20 Apr 2020

Reason:
Budg/pol
framework

Grounds Maintenance Contract
Procurement
Procurement strategy for a
grounds maintenance contract for
parks and open spaces including
provision for grounds maintenance
on housing and highways sites

considered.
Cabinet Member for the
Environment

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer:
Richard Gill
Tel: 07833482119

PART OPEN

richard.gill@lbhf.gov.uk

PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
Resident Access and
Experience Programme

Cabinet Member for
Public Services Reform

Digital transformation programme
for how residents and businesses
contact and access the Council

Ward(s):
All Wards

PART OPEN
PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

Page 53

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

Contact officer:
Sharon Lea
Sharon.Lea@lbhf.gov.uk

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision
Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Cabinet

20 Apr 2020

Watermeadow Court - Final
Phase

Cabinet Member for the
Economy

Reason:
value in
excess of £5
million and
policies or
new income,
grants or
overspend
above
£100,000

Cabinet

20 Apr 2020

Reason:
Affects 2 or
more wards

Cabinet

20 Apr 2020

Reason:
value in
excess of £5
million and
policies or
new income,
grants or
overspend
above
£100,000

Budget approval for the final
phase of Watermeadow Court
Project including post completion
site security provision.
PART OPEN
PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
VPACH EV Charge Point
Contract
An Innovate UK funded project
with Vattenfall as the EV CP
operator included on the
consortium, to provide charge
points in residential areas by
utilising Virgin Media
infrastructure. H&F wish to enter
into a contract with this operator to
supply, install, maintain and
operate the EV charge points.
Ultra-Low Emission Vehicle
Last-Mile Freight Hub
Provision of a 'Freight Hub' facility
to serve Council departments and
businesses and help to reduce
traffic and congestion in
Hammersmith.

Page 54

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
Sands End
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer:
of any supporting
Matthew Rumble,
documentation
Kharon Williams
and / or
Tel: 07767 78 79 36
background
matt.rumble@lbhf.gov.uk,
kharon.williams@lbhf.gov.uk papers to be
considered.

Cabinet Member for the
Environment

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
All Wards
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer:
of any supporting
Richard Hearle
documentation
and / or
Richard.Hearle@lbhf.gov.uk
background
papers to be
considered.
Cabinet Member for the
A detailed report
Environment
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
Hammersmith
the meeting and
Broadway
will include details
of any supporting
Contact officer:
documentation
Hinesh Mehta
and / or
background
Hinesh.Mehta@lbhf.gov.uk
papers to be
considered.

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision

Cabinet

2 Mar 2020

Social Value Policy

Reason:
Budg/pol
framework

Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Approve the content of the Social
Value Policy to allow its
implementation across all
Council’s services.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

Cabinet Member for
Finance and
Commercial Services

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Ilaria
Agueci

PART OPEN
PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

Ilaria.Agueci@lbhf.gov.uk

Information relating to any
individual.

Cabinet

20 Apr 2020

Corporate Revenue Monitor
2019/20 Month 9 21 December
2019

Cabinet Member for
Finance and
Commercial Services

Reason:
Affects 2 or
more wards

Forecast outturn as at end of
December. Virement requests

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Emily
Hill
emily.hill@lbhf.gov.uk

Cabinet

20 Apr 2020

Reason:
value in
excess of £5
million and
policies or
new income,
grants or
overspend

Direct award to TBAP Academy
Trust for delivery of Alternative
Provision School Places in
Hammersmith and Fulham
This report seeks approval to
direct award TBAP Academy Trust
to ensure the continuation of
delivery of Alternative Provision
School Places in Hammersmith
and Fulham.

Page 55

Cabinet Member for
Children and Education

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Susan
Hughes
susan.hughes@lbhf.gov.uk

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.
A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

above
£100,000

Proposed Key Decision
Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)
papers to be
considered.

PART OPEN
PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

Cabinet

20 Apr 2020

Reason:
value in
excess of £5
million and
policies or
new income,
grants or
overspend
above
£100,000

Reprocurement of agency
contract
Re-procurement of agency
contract
PART OPEN
PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

Cabinet Member for
Public Services Reform

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Mary
Lamont

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

May 2020
Cabinet

11 May 2020

Reason:
Affects 2 or
more wards

APPROVAL TO DRAW DOWN
SECTION 106 RECEIPTS TO
FUND ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY 20202023
This report seeks approval of a
three-year £4.9m budget to fund
delivery and commissioning of
economic development activity to
support the achievement of key

Page 56

Cabinet Member for the
Economy

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Karen
Galey, Kamal Motalib
Karen.Galey@lbhf.gov.uk,
Kamal.motalib@lbhf.gov.uk

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision
Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

objectives of the Council’s
Industrial Strategy, H&F Vision
and inclusive economic growth
ambitions.
Cabinet

11 May 2020

Reason:
Affects 2 or
more wards

Housing Strategy 2019
Report on the Council's new
Housing Strategy

papers to be
considered.

Cabinet Member for
Housing

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Labab
Lubab
Tel: 020 8753 4203
Labab.Lubab@lbhf.gov.uk

Cabinet

11 May 2020

Defend Council Homes Policy

Reason:
Affects 2 or
more wards

Policy to provide extra protection
for residents of council homes,
involving them from the start of
any redevelopment proposals and
ensuring the council is working to
best practice.

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

Cabinet Member for
Housing

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Fiona
Darby
Fiona.Darby@lbhf.gov.uk

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.
A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

June 2020
Cabinet

June 2020

Reason:
value in
excess of £5
million and
policies or
new income,
grants or
overspend
above
£100,000

CCTV Maintenance and
Installation award of Contract

Cabinet Member for the
Environment

Report on the award of the CCTV
maintenance and installation
contract following procurement

Ward(s):
All Wards
Contact officer: Gary
Smith
Gary.Smith@lbhf.gov.uk

Page 57

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
before the date of
the meeting and
will include details
of any supporting
documentation
and / or
background
papers to be
considered.

Decision to
be Made by
(Cabinet or
Council)

Date of
DecisionMaking
Meeting and
Reason

Proposed Key Decision
Most decisions are made in
public unless indicated below,
with the reasons for the
decision being made in private.

Lead Executive
Councillor(s), Wards
Affected, and officer
to contact for further
information or
relevant documents

Cabinet

1 Jun 2020

Procurement Strategy for
Mental Health Supported
Housing

Cabinet Member for
Health and Adult Social
Care

Reason:
value in
excess of £5
million and
policies or
new income,
grants or
overspend
above
£100,000

Procurement strategy for our
mental health supported housing
in borough contracts.
PART OPEN
PART PRIVATE
Part of this report is exempt from
disclosure on the grounds that it
contains information relating to the
financial or business affairs of a
particular person (including the
authority holding that information)
under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act
1972, and in all the circumstances
of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption
outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

Page 58

Documents to
be submitted to
Cabinet
(other relevant
documents may
be submitted)

A detailed report
for this item will be
available at least
five working days
Ward(s):
before the date of
All Wards
the meeting and
will include details
Contact officer:
of any supporting
Jonathan Lillistone
documentation
Tel: 020 8753 3446
and / or
jonathan.lillistone@lbhf.gov.
background
uk
papers to be
considered.

